See a Social Security Number? Say Something!
Report Privacy Problems to https://public.resource.org/privacy
Or call the IRS Identity Theft Hotline at 1-800-908-4490



https://public.resource.org/privacy?2010_07_EO:13-5658824_990_200906.pdf
https://public.resource.org/privacy?2010_07_EO:13-5658824_990_200906.pdf

CL0w
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l_ﬂﬂs No 1545-0047

Som 990

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4847(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except black lung
benefit trust or pnvate foundation)
Internal m,:::’ s:,':;u 1 » The organization may have to use a copy of this retum to satisty state reporting requirements.
A __For the 2008 calendar year, or tax year innin July 1 , 2008, and endm June 30 , 20 09
B Check f applicable C Name of org, 1 Trustees of the American School of Clagsical Studi]D Employ . identificati
{7 adareas change Doing Business As 13 5658824
a Nama change Nurnber and strest (or PO box ¢ mar ¢ not deisversd to sireet adkiress) € “Telephone number
Intua) retusn 6-8 Charlton Street { 609 ) 683-0800
Cily or town, state or country, and ZIP + 4
Termination
() Amended retum Princeton, New Jersey 085405232
Dﬁnbicaﬂcnpendmg £ Name and address of principal officer:

Open to Public
Inspection

Room/suite

Q Gross receipts S

-1 8,801,346
MN{s) Is s a group ratum for dﬁlla!s"DVon Owo
HE) Are all affliates inctuded? [Jves [INo
i "No,™ attach a Ist {see instructions)
Hlc) Group exe. number »
1883 | M State of legal domicila WA

}_Tax-axempt status 7] 501(c) ( 3 )} Ginsert no) [ 4947alinior ] S27

J _Website: » ascsa.edu.qr

K Tipe of organaaton. /) Corporaion L) Trust L) Associaton 1] Other
Summary

] L Year of formation.

1 Brefly describe the organtzation’s mission or most significant activities: The A"“efica“ School of Classical Studies,

Check this box » [J  the organization discontinued tts operations or disposed of more than 25% of s assets.
Number of voting members of the governing body (Part Vi, hne 1a).

Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part Vi, line 1b)
Total number of employees (Part V, line 2a)

Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary)

Ta Total gross unrelated bustess revenue from Part VI, line 12 column (C)
b Net unrelated buginess taxable income from Form 990-T, line 34,

Activities & Governance

-1,394
_+1,394

Current Year
4,742,193
821,251

] P.rlor'Yo;r
6,243,308
671,011

8 Contnbutions and grants (Part Viil, line 1h) .
9 Program service revenue (Part Vili, line 2g) .

SCANNED JUL 2 3 2018

-

11
12

10 Investrment income (Part Viil, column (A), iines 3, 4, and 7d)

Qther revenue (Part Vili, column (A), ines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9c, 1_99,_5(\& 1{9)

13
14
15

Total revenue—add lines 8 throuqﬁ 11 {must agg_?art ij column (A), ine 12 )

24,043,075

-24,391,996

0

27,206

30,957,394

-18,801,346

Grantsa and similar amaunts paidl (Part W%, ectimn {A), lines 1-8) .
Benefits paid to or for megapersMParnt X, column {A), l ne 4)
Salanes, other compensation, emplayse bapefis (P 1k

MNthne avaanrame Dam 1V

VBT GRPONSCS p vt 1A, Columnin (Hl, "HW l 'a'l IU, ) H-l‘"}

Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Pant IX, column (A) lme 25)
Revenue less expensss. Subtract line 18 from line 12

lumn {A), Imes 5—1 O)
18a Professional fundraising fees (PartIX, column (A), ine 119)

b Total fundraising expenses (Part !X colump (D) Jtn025) 483,798

569,063

516,419

0

6,319,330

5,907,816

43,030

£,085,158

67,611

5,354,579

13,026,578

11,853,525

17,930,815

Nat Assets or
Fund Balances;

Total assets (Part X, line 16) .,
Total habihities {Part X, line 26) .
Net assets or fund balances. Subtract lme 21 from Ilne 20

Signature Block —

Beginning of Year

-30,654 871
End of Year

199,337,001

145,987,224

809,737

905,056

198,427,264

145,082,168

(fo

Srgnature of oiﬂceV

Under penatties of p-rjury | gpciare that | have examined this retum, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my Knowiadge
and be!w complete. Declaration of preparer {other than officer) is based on all information of which praparer has any knowledge

’ ~ O\ £

(fe

mfu?;-,}o_o

Type or pnnt name and title 7

Paid
Preparer's
Use Only

Preparer’s
signature

Check It
selt-

employed » D

Prepearer's idgnutying number
{see nstructions)

if seif-employed),

Firm's name {or yours ’

EIN »

address, and ZIP + 4

Phono no P (

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) .

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

D Yeos D No

Cat No 11282Y

Form 990 (2008)




Form 93y (2098

Page 2
‘ERN Statement of Program Service Accomplishments (see instructions)

1

2 Od the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not histed on
the prior Form 990 or 930-E2? Coe 3 ves &4 No
If “Yos.” describe these new services on Schedule O

3 D the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
services? . .o . C . O ves 1 No
If “Yes," descrbe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Descrbe the exempt purpase achievements for each of the organuization’s three largest program services by expenses
Section 501(c)3) and 501(c)(4) organizations and section 4947(a)(1) trusts are required to report the amount of grants and
aflocations to others, the total expenses, and ravenue, if any, for each program service reported.

43 (Code. ___......... ) Expenses $ _______1,705,789 including grants of $______ ... 421,660 ) (Revenue $_____ ] 1,649,583 )
instruction and Student Services

4d Other program services (Describe in Scheduls O)

(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $
4e Total prograrmn service expenses » § 9,632,190 (Must equal Part IX, Line 25, column (B).)

Form 990 (2008)




Form 39C 208"

I __ Checkiist of Required Schedules

Yes | No
1 Is the organization descnbed 1n section 501(c)(3) or 4847(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If “Yes,” | 11V
complete Schedule A )
2 Is the organization required fo complete Scnedule B Schedule oi Contnbulors" 2!V
3 Did the organization engage In direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposmon to
candidates for pubhc office? If “Yes.” complete Schedule C, Part ! . . 3 v
4 Section 501(c){3) orgamzations. Did the orgamzauon engage In lobbying BC“V“'GS" " "Yes comple!e
Schedule C, Part Il 4 v
S Section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), and 501(c)(e) organlzatlons. ls the orgamzatlon sublect to the sectlon 6033(9)
notice and reporting requirement and proxy tax? If “Yes,” complete Scheduie C, Part Iil . 5
6 Did the organization mamtain any donor advised funds or any accounts where donors have the nght to
provide advice on the distnbution or investment 6f amounts in such funds or accounts? If “Yes.” complete
Schedule D, Part | . .18
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement mcludmg easemenls to preserve open space.
the environment, historic land areas, or histonc structures? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Il 7 Y
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of ant, historical treasures, or other similar assets?/f “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part i . 8 1V
9 Did the orgamzation report an amount In Pan X lme 21 serve as a customan for amounts not hsted n Pan
X or provide credit counseling. debt management. credit repair, or debt negotiation services? /f “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part IV ) S v
10 O the organzation hold assets in term, permanent, or quas:—endowments" If “Yes,” complete Schedu/e D Parf V 10 v
11 Did the orgarization report an amount in Part X, lines 10, 12, 13, 15, or 257 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D,
Parts VI, VI, VI, IX, or X as apphcable . . e S K 4
12 Did the orgamization receive an audited financial statement for the year for whnch 1t 1s completing this return
that was prepared in accordance with GAAP? If “Yes," complete Schedule D, Parts XI, Xli, and Xili 12| ¢
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)1XAXH)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule E 13|/
14a D the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the US 7 .|sal vV
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaklng, fundralsmg,
business, and program service activities outside the U.S.? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Part | . 14b| ¥
15 D the organization report on Part X, column (A}, ine 3, more than $5,000 of grants or assistance to any
organization or entity located outside the Umited States? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Part Ii. 15 v
16 Did the orgarization report on Part 1X, column (A), ine 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or aSSIStance
to individuals tocated outside the Uputed States? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Part il . 18 v
17  Did the organization report more than %000 on Part IX, column (A), ine 11e7 }f "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Panl 17|V
18  Did the organization report more than $15,000 total on Part Vi, fines 1c and 8a? If *Yes, " compiste Schedule G, Part If 18 'V
19 Did the organization report more than $15.000 on Part VIII. Iine 9a? If “Yes, " complete Schedule G, Part il | 19 v
20 Did the orgamization operate one or more hospitals? If “Yes,” complete Schedule H . 20 v
21 Dud the organization report more than $5,000 on Part IX. column (A), ine 12 If “Yes,” complete Schedule A Par!s Iand II 21 v
22 Did the arganization repart mora than $5,000 on Part 1Y, column {8}, hne 27 if “Yes," complete Schedule 1, Parts | and 22 v
23 Oud the orgamization answer “Yes” to Pant Vil, Section A, questions 3, 4, or 57 If “Yes,” complete
Schedule J . . . Co R Co. . 23l
24a Dd the organmization have a tax-exempt bond 1issue with an outstanding pnncma( amount of more than
$100.000 as of the last day of the year, that was 1ssued after December 31, 20027/ “Yes, " answer questions
24b-24d and complete Schedule K. If "Np,” go to question 25. 24a 4
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bands beyond a temporary penod exceptlon? 24b v
¢ Did the organization malatain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? 24c v
d Did the organization act as an “on behall of" isguer for bonds outstandlng al any tume dunng the yeaﬂ 24d v
253 Section S01(c)(3) and 501(c){4) orgapizations. Did the orgamzation engage in an excess benefit transaction
with a disqualfied person dunng the year? If “Yes,"” complete Schedule L, Part | 253 v
b Did the orgamization become aware that it had engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a dlSQUanfled
person from a prior year? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part | 250 4
26 Was a loan to or by a cument or former officer, director. trustes, key empioyes, hnghly compensated empIOyee. or
disqualified person outstanding as of the end of the organization’s tax year? & “Yes,” complate Schedule L, Part If . 26 v
27 Did the orgamzation provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, dwector, trustee, key employee, or
substantial contnibutor_or to a person related to such an indwidual? If “Yss,* complete Schedule L, Part iil | 2T v

Form 990 (2008)




Form 990 (2098) Page 4
. QXM Checkiist of Required Schedules (continued)
Yes | No
28 During the tax year. did any person who 1$ a cumrent or former officer, director trustee, or key employee.
a Have a direct business relationship with the orgamization (other than as an officer, dwector, trustee or
empioyee), or an indirect business relationship through ownership of more than 35% in another entity
(indiidually or collectively with other person(s) listed n Part VI, Section A)? If “Yes, " complete Schedule L,
Part vV . | 28a
b Have a famuly member who had a dtrect or md:rect bustness relauonsmp with !he orgamzanon” If "Yes.
compiste Schedule L, Part IV, 28b v
¢ Serve as an officer. director, trustee, key employee partner or member of an entny (ora shareholder of a
professional corporation) doing business with the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedula L, Part IV . 28¢ v
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 m non-cash contnbutions? Jf “Yes,™ complete Schedule M | 28 | ¥
30 O the organization recewve contnbutions of art, historical treasures, or other sinular assets, or gquahfied
conservation contrbutions? /f *Yas,” complete Scheoufe M . 30 v
31 Ddthe organnzatlon llquldate terminate, or dissolve and Cease operanons’i i "Yes complete Schedule N 31 v
Part | . .
32 Didthe mgamzatlon sell exchange dxspose of or transfer more than 25% o! its net assets'HI Yes, " complele
Schedule N, Part if . ) 32 v
33 Did the organization own 100% of an enmy dlsregarded as separate lrom the orgamzatnon under Regulauons
sections 301.7701-2 and 301 7701-37 If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part I 33 v
34 Was the organization related 1o any tax-exempt or taxable enmy” If “Yes," complete Schedule R Pans 1,
M, IV, and V, hine 1 . C 34 v
35 s any related organization a contro!led enmy wuthm the meamng oi secﬂon 512(b)(13)7 If “Yes,” complere
Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . . 3s v
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organlzahon make any transfers to an exempt non- charnable related
organization® If “Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . . 38 v
37 Dud the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an enmy that »s not a related orgamzatlon
and that 1s treated as a partnership for federat incorme tax purposes" If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part
v

Form 990 (2008)



Form 930 (2068 Page §
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096, Annual Summary and Transmuittal of
U.S. Information Returns Enter -D- if not applicable . . . . . 1a 25
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in hne 1a. Enter -0- if no! apphcable . 1b 0
¢ Drd the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reponable payments to vendors and reportable
gaming {gambhing) winnings 1o prize vanners? L[ A
28 Enter the number of employees reported on Form w-3 Transmmal of Wage and Tax
Statements, fied for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by fhis return |23 38)
b It at least one s reported on line 2a, did the orgamization file all required federal employment tax returns? 20| v
Note. !f the sum of hnes 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required 1o e-file this return, (see
instructions)
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross ncome of $1,000 or more dunng the year covered by
this return? . 3a | vV
b ¥ “Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for tms year? 4 "No prowde an explanahon n Schedule O 3b| v
4a At any ime dunng the calendar year, did the organization have an mterest in, or a signature or other authonty
ovar, a financiat account in a fareign country (such as a bank account, secunhies account, or other financial
account)? . 4a| v
b 1f “Yes. enter the name of the foreign coumry > 9.'.".?‘:.? ...................................................
See the instructions for exceptions and filing requirernents for Form TD F 90-22 1, Report of Forelgn Bank
and Financial Accounts
5a Was the organizalion a party to a prohibited tax sheiter transaction at any hrme during the tax year? . Sa v
b D any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? | b v
¢ If “Yes,” to question 5a or 5b, did the orgamization hle Form 8886-T, Disclosure by Tax-Exempt Entity
Regarding Prohibited Tax Sheiter Transaction? . . Sc
6a Did the orgaruzation solicit any contributions that were not tax deductrble7 . .82 v
b If “Yes,” did the arganization inciude with every soficitation an express statement that such contnbutlons or
gifts were not tax deductible?, .. 8b
7 Organizations that may receive deductlble contnbuﬂons under sectlon 170(c)
@ Did the organization provide goods or services in exchange for any quid pro quo contribution of more than 7 7
$75? | a
b if “Yes,” did ihe organlzallon notlfy the donor of the value of the goods or serwces provnded” . o) v
¢ Oid the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispase of tanglble personal property for which it was
required to file Form 82827 . B 7c 4
d (f “Yes,” wndicate the number of Forms 8282 fnled dunng the. year . . 7d 0
e Did the orgamzation, during the year, recewve any funds, directly or mdlrectly to pay premiums on a personal
benefit contract? | 7e 7/
f Oid the organization, dunng lhe year pay prermums durectly or mdnrectly, on a personal benem contract7 7t v/
g For ail contributions of qualfied ntellectual property. did the organization file Form 8899 as required? 7
h For contnbutions of cars, boats, awplanes. and oiner veiucies, did the organization file a Form 1098-C as
required? . . 7h
8 Section 501(c)(3) and other sponsonng orgamzaiuons mam\aming donor adwsed funds and section
509(a}{3) supporting organizations. Did the supporting organization, or a fund mantained by a sponsoring
orgamization, have excess business holdings at any time during the year? . 8
9 Section 501(c)(3) and other sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advnsed funds
a Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 49667 9a
b Did the organization make a distribution to a donor. donor advisor, or related person?. 9b
10 Section 501(c){7) organizations. Enter:
a Intiation fees and caprtal contributions included on Part VIIl, hne 12, . 10a
b Gross receipts, mcluded on Form 890, Part Vil line 12, for public use of club facnlmes 10b
11 Section 501{c}{12) organizations. Enter
a Gross income from members or shareholders . . . 1a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or pand 0 other sources agamst
amounts due or receved from them) . . . 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the orgamzatuon ﬁllng Form 990 |n leu of Form 10417 {12a
b If “Yes.' enter the amount of tax-exempt (nterest receved or accrued during the year. |12b|

Form 990 (2008)




Fom; 996 +2058; Page 8

Governance, Management, and Disclosure (Sections A, B, and C request information about policies not
required by the Internal Revenue Code.}

Section A. Governing Body and Management

For each “Yes" response to lines 2~7b below, and for 8 "No™ response (o ines 8 or b below. describe the
cireumstances, processes or changes in Schedule O. See insfructions
Enter the number of voling members of the governing body e . 1a 19
Enter the number of voting members that are independent . . . .. 1b 19
Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family mlatronshtp or a business relationship with
any other officer. director, trustee, or key employea?
Did the orgarszation delegate cantrol over management duties customanly performed by or under zhe durect
supervision of othicers, directors or trustees, or key empioyees to a managsment company or other person? .
Did the organization make any signdficant changes lo 1ts organizational documents since the pnor Form 830 was hled?
Did the orgamization become aware during the year of a material diversion of the orgamzanon‘s assets?
Does the organization have merbers or stockholders? .
Does the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who may elect one or more members
of the governing body?
Are any decisions of the govermning body subject 1o approval by members stockholders or other persons?
Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or wntten actions undertaken during
the year by the following
The governing body? .
Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governmg body’?
Does the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates?
if “Yes.” does the organization have wniten policies and procedures governing the actlvmes of such chapters
affihates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with those of the organization?

10 Was a copy of the Form 830 provided to the organization's governing body betore it was filed? All orgamzatuons
must describe in Schedule O the process, if any, the organization uses to review the Form 990

11 [s there any officar, director or trustee, or key employee listed in Part VIt, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organization's mailing address? If “Yes,” provide the names and addresses in Schedule O

Section B. Policies

SN IKINSIS S

12a Does the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No,” go to ine 13

b Are officers, directors or truslees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give
nse to conflicts?

Does the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compllance with the pohcy" If “Yes,”
descnbe in Schedule O how thus 1s done . .

Does the organization have a written whistieblower pollcy7 .

Does the orgaruzation have a wntten document retention and destruction pohcy" .

Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approvaj by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporanecus substantiation of the deliberatron and decision:
The orgamzation's CEQ, Executive Director. or top management ofhcial? .

Other officers or key employees of the orgamization?

Describe the process in Schadule O (see instructions)

Did the orgamzation invest in, contribute assets to, or participate 1n a joint venture or similar arrangement
with a taxable entty during the year? .

If “Yes," has the organization adopted a wrmen pohcy or procedure requmng the orgamzanon to evaluate

Its participation sn joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and taken steps to safeguard
ihe organization's exempt status with respact to such arrangements? ..

Sectlon C. Disclosure
17
18

Section 6104 requires an organization 1o make its Forms 1023 {or 1024 1if apphcable), 990, and 990-T (501(c){(3)s only)
available for public inspection Indicate how you make these available. Check all that apply

O own website [ Another's website 4 Upon request

Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how), the organization makes Its governing documents, conflict of interest
policy. and financial statements available to the public

State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the

Form 990 (2008)




Form 990 (20C8;

Page 7

Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

orgamzation and any related organizations

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be bsted Use Schedule J-2 if additional space s needed
e Uist all of the organization s current officers, directors, trustees {whether individuals or organizations). regardless of amount
of compensation, and current key employees. Enter -0- in columns (D). (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

® Lsst the organizaton's five current highesi compensated employees (other than an officer, director. trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) aof more than $100,000 from the

® List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100.000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations

e List all of the orgamization’s former directors or trustees that recewved, in the capacity as a tormer director or trustee of
the organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the orgamzation and any related crgamizations
List persons in the following order: individual trustees or dweclors; Institutional trustees, officers, key employees, highest
compensated employees, and former such persons.
] Check this box if the orgamzation did not compensate any officer, director, rustee. or key employee.

A}
Name ang Title

8)
Average
hours per
week

Positon [check all that apply)

©

VAP O
aB)sNy) (ENPIAPU)

Q0ISMU) eUBINYISUY|

S0

EE
3 | &5
El%e
: 3
g
g

Buuoy

(]

compensation
from
the
orgamzaton
(W-2/1093-MISC)

e
Reportable
compeansation
trom relateqd
orgamzatons.
{W-2/1099-MISC)

(F)
Estimated
amount of

other
compensation
from the
organizalion
and retated
arganizations

Charles Williams

Board Treasurer na A va 0 0 0
Willi i
MWilliamLoomis . ... na 0 0 0
vh

........................... y
Trastee L rrmesnessesee e na v 0 0 0
JdaneBuikstra | ]
Trustee na v 0 o 0
EdwardCohen . .
------------------------------------ na v [ 1] 0

- et
Lrusee

Trustee na R4 ¢ o ¢
Elizabeth Gebhard | .. .. .. .. ... .

Trustee na Y 0 0 0
Mary Lefkowitz

Trustee na v 9 0 °
JRobertMaguwre ]

Trustee na v 0 9 0
Robert McCabe . ..

Trustee 1na v ¢ o °
HunterRawlings ..

Yrustee T na v 0 ¢ °
DamarisSkouras ...

Trustee na v 0 0 0
William Slaughter

Trustoe T na / 0 o 0

Form 990 (2008)



Form 990 12008)

M Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(7Y] ) © ) 3] [r]

Name and title Average | Positwon (check aft that apoty! Reportacie Repcraante Estrmatec
rQurs per QT

t
f

Page 8

c on eTOE saud® amo.mt ¢*
trom Irom relatea ot~er
the organrizations compersatwon
organization (W-2/1099-1A1SC, ‘rom \he
(W-2 1099-MISC} orgamization
and related
orgarizationsg

oO|x

33

week

ophAodwe

915N} [BUONNYISY]
pajpsuaduiod 1eaySiy

Judith Thomson 0

0 (]

0 0

177.516 26,884

119,067 11,220

Budget Director 99,289 23,929
John Sproule
Consuiting CFO v 33,787 0
Jack Davis (Schedule J)

4,596

126,370 13,006

93,279 35,128

85,073 38,157

. > 738,977 0 178,324

Total number of lndnwdua)s (mc)udmg those n 1a) who recewed more !han $100,000 in reportable compensation from the
organization » 6

Yes| Na

Oid the orgamzation hst any former officer, directar or trustee, key employes, or highest compensated ,
employee on ling 1a? // “Yes,” complate Schedule J for such individual . . .. . Yy

For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from
{he organmization and related orgamzatnons grealer than $150,0007 i “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
ndivigual, . . . A
5 Did any person llsted on lme 1a recewe ar accrue compensanon from any unrelaced organlzallon for
sarvices rendered to the orgamzation? If "Yes, " complate Schedule J for such person | . 51V
Section B. Indepandent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization.

®w t8) (c)
Name and business address Description of senices Compensation
Mayo Capital Partners, LLC Investment Management 360,714
University Of Cincinnati Persanne! Services 250,527
Rue Insurance insurance brokerage 228,931
J W Bnistol & Co Investment Management 166,447
University of Southern Calif.- irvine Personne) Services 107,882

2 Total number of independent contractors (including those in 1} who received more than $100.000 in
compensation from the organization » 6

Form 990 (2008)




Form 990 2008,

ENI]  Statement of Revenue

Page 9

(B) © ©)
Total revenue Relatec or Urrelates Rever.e
.Qie'ho! DLSImeSS lm:-l\.ﬂl:(.,— 'vorn“v:-.a
oram e sever e $17 513 or ot
Eg 1a Federated campaigns . P la 0
b Membership dues . R - 0
g‘g ¢ Fundraising events . . . .} 1S 285
3| d Related organizations . . | 1d 0
's'--s e Govemment grants {contrbutions), | 1@ 208,130
§ 51 Al other contributions, gifts, grants,
2§ and similar amounts not included above L1 4,533,778
gg g Noncash contributions inclutled ntnes a1 § ., __ ... “‘35
I h Total. Add lines 1a~1f ... P> 4,742,193
% Business Code
§ | 22 StudentTuitionandFees 611710 478,052 478,052 0 0
& | b Pubhcation incoms T 611710 163669 183,669 0 0
¢ Miscellaneous "~ " 611710 159,530 159,530 0 0
G e e e 0 0
Bl @ e e e 0 0 o 0
% f Al other program service revenue 0 0 0 0
& | g TYotal. Add ines 2a-2f > 821,251
3 Investment ncome (including dividends, interest, and
other similar amounts) N 2,366,664 9 8 2,966,664
4 Income from investment of tax-exempl bond procesds W 0 0 0 0
5 Royalties . .. e . > 0 o e 0
(h F\ea\ {m) Pergonal
8a Gross Rents
b Less. rental expenses
¢ Rental mcome or (loss)
d Net rental ncome or {loss) . . . . . P> 0 0 0 0
Ta Gross amount from sales of }_() Securittes {#) Other
assets other than inventory 529,191,908 0
b Less  cost or other basis
ang sales expenses 556,550,568 e
¢ Gain or (loss) -27,358,660 0
d Net gan or (joss) . » +27,358,660 0 0 -27,358,660
3 | 8a Gross income from fundransmg
S events (not incluaing § ... __.2B9
é of contnbutions reponed on line 1c).
* See PartlV, bre 18, . 2 62300
§ b Loss direct expenses . . b 35094
¢ Net ncome or (loss) from fundransmg events . » 27,206 0 0 27,206
9a Gross income from gaming activities.
Seg PartV,linet9® . . . . ., . a
b Less direct expenses, b
¢ Net income or (loss) from gammg actwulxgs_ .. 0 [ 0 0
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances . ., a
b Less' cost of goods sold . b
¢ Netincome or (loss) from sales of |nventory . » 0 0 0 (]
Miscellaneous Ravenue Business Cods
118 . .
L PR
L
d All other revenue , .
e Total. Add hnes 11a-11d > 0
12  Total Revenue. Add lines 1h, 2g 3. 4. 5 Gd 7d 8c.
9c. 10¢, and 1te . > -18,801,346 821,251 O] -24,364,790

Form 990 (2008)




¢ Form 99C (2706

m Statement of Functional Expenses

Pagz 10

Section 501{c)(3) and 501{c){4) organizations must complete all columns.
All other organizations must complete column (A) but are not required to compiete columns (B), (C), and (D).

Do not include amounts reparted on lines 6b, Total ;:’pensgs Progvs(ne‘v)ser.nce Manag;:,em ang Funtgg)lsmg
7b, 8b, 8b, and 10b of Part Vil experses general expensos experses
1 Grants and other assistance to govemments and
organizations in the U.S. See Part IV line 21 ° 0
2 Grants and other assistance to tndwiwluals in
the U.S. See Part Iv, line 22 . 0 0
3 Grants and other assistance 10 gOvefnments.
organizatons. and individuals outside the
US. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 516.419 516,419
4 Benefits paid to or for members . 0 00
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees. and key employees . . 463,323 92,691 244,913 125,719
8 Compensation not included above, to dnsqualrﬁed
persons (as defined under section 4858()(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)3)B) 0 0 g o
7 Other salanes and wages . 4,131,014 3.515,135 516,799 99,080
8 Pension plan contnbutions (include section 401{k)
and section 403(b) employer contnbutions) 248,563 137,179 80,463 30,921
9 Other employee benefits 447,844 355,141 68,237 24,466
10 Payroll taxes A 617,072 493,740 106,708 16,624
11 Fees for services (non-employees)
a Managemeat 0 0 0 0
b Legal . 66,930 31,935 34,995 0
¢ Accounting 108,182 0 108,182 00
d Lobbying , B 0 0 0 0
@ Professional fundraising senvices. See Part v, e 17 67,611 67,611
t Investment management fees . 454,989 454,989 0 0
g Other . 0 0 0 0
12  Adveruising and promouon 85,134 0 0 65,135
13 Office expanses 299,098 196,995 73,808 28,295
14 Information technology . 37,687 37,687 0 0
15 Royalties 0 0 0 0
16 Occupancy . 577,001 360,826 216,175
17 Trave . 73,232 53,217 0 20,015
18 Payments of travel or entertamment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials 0 0 Q 0
19 Conterences, conventions, and meetings 0 0 0 0
20  Interest 0 0 0 0
21 Payments 10 af*hhatee ) ] ] 0
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amomzauon 898,764 872,860 25,904 0
23 Insurance . . 231,299 111,846 119,453 0
24 Other expenses. Iitemize expenses not
covered above. {Expenses grouped together
and fabeled miscellaneous may not exceed
5% of lotal expenses shown on line 25 below.)
a | 991,218 981,218 0 0
b 649,854 649,854 0 0
c 560,706 560.706 0 0
d 181,452 181,452 0 0
a 166,133 18,300 141,900 5932
f Al other expenses ...........................
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24! 11,853,525 9.632,130 1,737,537 483,798
26  Jomnt Costs. Check here » [ ] if followin
SOP 98-2. Complete this hne only f tge
organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation . . 0 0 0 0

Form 990 (2008)
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Form 990 (2008)

Page 114

Balance Sheet

(A)
Beginnung of year

B)
End of year

Cash—non-interesi-bearing .
Savings and temporary cash anveslments

Pledges and grants receivable. net .

Accounts receivable, net

Recevables {from current and formef oﬂncers dnrectors uus\ees key
employees, or other related paries Complete Part il of Schedule L .
Receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section

4958(f)(1) and persons descnbed in section 4958(c)(3)(8) Complete
Part ll of Schedule L , .
Notes and loans receivable, net
Inventones for sale or use .
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges

10a 18,020,142

633,696

1,362,700

(]

0

930,972

1,430,571

95,696

143,686

(1]

0

0

0

0

188,577

154,788

Land, buildings, and equipment cost basts

Less accumulated depreciation. Complete
Part VI of Schedule D

10b 11,138,894

7,471,654

6,881,248

Investments—publicly traded seCUrmes
Investments—other securities. See Part IV, line 11
investments—program-related¢ See Part IV, line 11
Intangible assets .

Other assets. See Part IV, lme 11 .
Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34)

146,414,910

103,840,173

42,820,739

31,464,263

0

)

(1]

0

780,757

709,795

199,337,001

145,987,224

[’2]
2
£
£
K]
-l

Accounts payable and accrued expenses .

Grants payable

Deterred revenue .

Tax-exempt bond habnlmes

Escrow account hability. Complete Parl v ol Schedula D

Payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees, key
employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified
persons. Complete Pant I of Scheduie L . R
Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated thlrd pames .
Unsecurad notes and loans payable .o

Other liabthttes Complete Part X of Schedule D

Total liabilities. Add Iines 17 through 25 .

736,923

692,415

0

114,989

154,816

0

0

Q

(1]

9

0

0

4]
0
0

§7,825

57,825

909,737

805,056

Net Assets or Fund Balances

1

30
31
32
33

Accounting method used 10 prepare the Form 950 [J Cash

Organizations that follow SFAS 117, check here b IZ and
compilete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.

Unrestricted net assets .

Temporanly restricted net assets

Permanently resincied nét asssts

Orgamizations that do not follow SFAS 117 check ‘here » CI
and complete lines 30 through 34,

Capita! stock or trust pnincipal, or current funds

Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building. or equipment fund
Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds
Total net assets or fund balances

174,165,426

27

67,959,493

3,153,716

28

53,829,064

21,108,122

29

23,293,611

30

N

198,427,264

145,082,168

199.337,001

32
33
34

145,987,224

Total habihtiss and net assets/fund balances
m}ﬁnanclal Statements and Reporting

Accrual

J Other

2a Were the organization's financiat statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? .
b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant?

Yas | No

v

¢ If “Yes” to lines 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversnght of
the audit. review, or compriation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? . . 2c

Ja As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in
the Single Audit Act and OMB Crrcular A-133?7 | e e e e e e 3a v

b If "Yes." did the organization undergo the required audlt or audns’ e e e e e 3b

Form 990 (2008)




B No 1945-0047
o 0.E2) Public Charity Status and Public Support | over

Yo be pleted by ail section 501{c)(3) org tions and section 4847{a)(1)
nonexampt chantable trusts. Open to Public

E:panm;\: ;:ut:e 1re:sew » Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-E2. p See separate instructions. inspection

Name of the organustion
Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens 13 5658824
Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) (see instructions)

The organization 15 not a private foundation because it 1s: (Please check only one organization )
1 O A church. convention of churches, or association of churches described in sectian 170{b)(1){A)(H).
2 D A school descrbed in section 120(b)(1NANY). (Attach Schedule £.)
3 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service orgamization described n saction 170(b){1){A){ii). (Attach Schedule H.)
4 [J A medical research organization pperated in conjunction with a hospital described i section 170(b}(1}{A){iii). Enter the
hospnal's name, City, and state

[3 An organization operated for the benafit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit descrnbed 1in
section 170(b}{1)(A)(lv). (Complete Past 1.}

O A federal, state, or local govetnment or governmental unit descnbed in section 170(){1)(A)(v).

[ An organization that normally recewes a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general pubiic
descnbed in section 170{b)(1){A){vi). (Complete Part i )

{0 A community trust described in section 170(b){1){A)}vi). {Complete Part 1)

[0 An organizatron that normally receives: (1) more than 33% % of its support from contributions, membership fees. and gross
receipts from activities related toits exempt functions—subject to centain exceptions, and {2) no more than 33/, % of its
suppon from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the arganization after June 30, 1975 See section 509({a)(2). (Complete Part Il1.)

O An orgamization orgamized and operated exclusively to test for public safely. See section 509{a)(4). (see instructions)

D an organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of. or to carry out the
purposes of one or more publicly supported organtzations described 1n section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section
508(a)(3). Check the box that descnbes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 11e through 11h

a [J Typel b O Typen ¢ O Type -Functionally integrated d O Type -Other
By checking thus box, | cerlify that the organization 1s not controlied directly of indirectly by one or more disquakiied
persons other than foundation managers and other than one or more publicly supported organizations described in section
509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2).

if the organization received a wntten determination from the IRS that it is a Type 1, Type Wi, or Type W supporting
organization, check this box e e e e s e s e e e e
Since August 17, 2006, has the organization accepted any gift or cantributian from any ot the
{oliowing persons?
{1) A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (i)
and () below, the governing body of the supported organizaton? . . . . . . . . . . |tgf
) A family member of a person described n (1)) above? Co. . . . e e e 1igfid
(i) A 35% controiled entrty of a person descnbed in () or (i) abave? . . . . .. N (XF
h Provide the following information about the organizations the organizatian supports.

(i) Name ot supporied {H e {1} Typo of orgamzation | (W} Is the organization]  tv) Dig you nonty {v) is the {vii) Amount ot
org.ryzanon {described on tnes 1-8 | m cof ) Ysted n your| the orgamzation in organization in col suppon
above or RS sechion Govamang dogumant? cal (M af vour i) organizod in the

(see instructions)} suppon? us-?

Yes No Yes No Yes No

Total

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notics, see the Instructions for Form 950, Cat No 11285F Schedule A (Form 980 or 990-E2) 2008




Screaule A Fruem 93C ar 990-EZ: 2008 Page 2
Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170{b){(1)(A){(iv} and 170(b){1){A)vi)
{Complete only If you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part 1)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year {or fiacal year beginning in) » (a) 2004 {b) 2005 {c}) 2006 {d} 2007 {e) 2008 (f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contnbutions. and
membership fees recewved. (Do not
mclude any ‘unusuat grants °)

Tax revenues levied for the organization’s
benefit and esther pald 1o or expanded on
its behat! .

The value of serviges or facdities
fumished by a governmental unit to the
arganization without chargs s e a
Total. Add knes 1-3 A
The portion of total contributions by oach
person (other than a governmental unik or
publicly supported organization) included
on hine 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column {f} .

8 __ Public support. Subtractline 5 from line 4.

Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2004 {b} 2005 {c) 2006 {d) 2007 {e) 2008 {f) Yotat
7 Amounts from line 4 | na

8 Gross income from interest, dnvndends.
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalnes and income from similar
sources . . .

Net wncome from unrelated business
actwities, whether or not the business s
regularly carried on

Other income Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explam in Part IV.)

11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10

12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) , . 121 _

13  First five years. If the Form 990 s for the organtization's first, second th:rd fOunh or hﬂh tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organizaton, check this box and stop here . P

Section C. Computation of Public Support Parcentage

14 Public suppart percentage for 2008 ine 6, column (f) dividad by hne 11, column (f) 14 na_ %

15  Public support percantage {from 2007 Schedule A, Part (V-A line 26f . . . 15 %
I3%s % support test—2008. 1t the organization did not check the box on line 13, and hne 14 s 33‘/:% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a pubhcly supported organization . . T |
331 % support tast—2007. If the argarnuzation did nat check a box on kne 13 o5 16a, and lme 15 s 33/\% or mose, check this
box and siop hore. The crganzation quahfies as a oublicly supported orgamzation . . . . ... 0
10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2008. If the organization did not check a box on ling 13, 1Ga or 16b and Ine 1415 10% or
more, and if the orgamization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain i Part IV how tha
organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” tast The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaten . . .» a

10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2007, if the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b. or 17a. and line 15 1s 10% or
more. and If the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and atap here. Explain in Part IV how the
organization mests the “facts-and-circurnstances™ test. The orgamzation qualfies as a publicly supported orgamzation . . » 0
Private foundation. If the orgarization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions » ]

Schedute A (Form 880 or 890-EZ) 2008




Scneaule A Forn GO or 990-EZ; 2008

Page 3

Support Schedute for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 9 of Part 1.}

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » {a} 2004 {b) 2005 {e} 2006

(d) 2007

(e} 2008

{f) Total

1  Gifts, grants, contnbutions and

mempership feas recetved (Do natinclude na

any “unusual grants.”) .

2 Gross recelpts from agmissions, merchandrse
sold or services performed, or faciiives
furrushad n any activity that s related to the
organzation’s tax-exempt purpose .

3 Gross receipts from actives that are not an
unretated trade of business under section 513

4  Tax revenues levied for the organization’s
benefit and erther paid to or expended on
its behalf L. . .

.

5 The value of services or facities
furmished by a govermmental umt {o the
organization without charge

6 Total. Add ines 1-5

7a Amounts wcluded on knes 1, 2, and 3
recerved from disqualfisd persons

b Amounts included on lnes 2 and 3
received from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of 1% of
the total of lines 9, 10c, 11, and 12 for the
year or $5,000 , .

¢ Add ines 7a and 7o

8 Pubhc support (Subtract line 7¢ from
ine 6} ..

Section B. Totél Suggort

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) p {a) 2004 (b) 2005 {c) 2006

{d) 2007

(e) 2008

(f) Total

9  Amounts fromine 6 . . na

10a Gross income from interest, d:wdends.
payments recerved on securnities loans,
rents, royalties and income from simitar
sources

b Unrelated business taxable mcome (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired atter June 30, 1975

€ Add hines 10a and 10b

11 Net income from uncreiated busmess
activities not mcluded n ne 100,
whether ar not tha business 1s regu!ar\y
carried on

12  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part V) .

13 To\al suppor\ (Add nes @, 10c, 11,
2y .

14 Flrst five years. l' the Form 990 ns for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organizauon, check thus box and step here

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

15 Public suppont percentage for 2008 {ine 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) 15 na_%
16 _ Public support percentage from 2007 Schedule A, Part IV-A, ine 27g . 18 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage

V7 Invesiment income percemage for 2008 (ine 10¢, column (7) divided by hne 13. column (f) . 17 na Y%
18 Investment income percentage from 2007 Schedule A, Part IV-A, fine 27 18 %

19a 33% % support tests - 2008, If the organization did not check the box on ine 14, and Ime 15 1s more than 334 %. and line
17 1s not mare than 33/ %, check thus box and stop here. The organmization quahfies as a publicly supported organmzation »

b 33% % support tests~2007. If the organization did not check a bax on line 14 or line 19a, and ine 16 is more than 334 %, and
hne 18 15 not more than 337 %. check thig box and stop here, The organization qualifies as a publicly supported orgamzation »

Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ® @)
Schedute A {Form 880 or 980-EZ) 2008




Screc.le 4 Forn S¥0 or 990-E2) 2068 Page 4

Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the explanation required by Part Il. ine 10,

Part ll, ne 17a or 17b; or Part lli, ine 12. Provide any other additional information (see nstructions)

Scheduie A (Form 980 or 950-EZ) 2008




SCO-‘{EDULE D | oms no 1525-0047
" (Form 980) Supplemental Financial Statements

» Attach to Form 990. To be compfeted by arganizatians that Qpen to Public

tosiviao Sy answered “Yo3,” to Form 990, Part IV, tine 6, 7. 8, 9, 10, 11, or 12. inspection

Narw of the organzaton Empl ide

Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athans 13 5658824
Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete «f
the organzation answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part LV, line 6.

(8) Donor agvised funds {b) Funds and other accounts

Total numbaer at end of year . . . na

Aggregate contributions to (during year)

Aggregate grants from (dunng year) .

Aggregate value at end of year .

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised

funds are the organizalion’s property, subject 1o the organization's exclusive legal control? . .. ves ] No

Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in wnting that grant funds may be

used only for chantable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor or other

impermissible private beneftt? | | | . D Yes_g No
Coaservation Easements. Gomplete |f the orgamzatcon answered "Yes to Form 990 Part IV, line 7.

Purpose(s) of conservation easemenis held Dy the orgarmzation (check ait that apply).

Preservation of land for pubhic use (e g . recreation or pleasure) [} Preservation of an histoncally important land area
{3 Protection of natural habitat [ Preservation of certified histonc structure
{3 rreservation of open space

Complete hnes 2a-2d i the organization held a quahfied conservation contnibution in the form of a conservation easement
on the last day of the tax year

Held at the €nd of the Year

Total number of conservation easements . . . . . ., . O -
Total acreage resincted by conservation easements . , . . 2p
Number of conservathon easements on a certified histonc structure mcluded in (a) . 2¢
Number of conservation easements included in (¢) acquired after 8/17/06 . . 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished. or termmated by the organization during
the taxable year »

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located »

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, violations, and

enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? . . | e D Yes D No
Staff or volunteer hours devoled to monitoring, inspecting, and enforcmg easemems dunng the year»

Amount of expenses incurred in monitonng. Inspecting, and entorcing easements dunng the year» $

Daes each conservation easement reported on Iine 2{d) above satisfy the requirements of section

170()4)(B)) and section 170M@NBNH? . . . . e 3 ves [J no

in Part XIV, describe how the orgamzation reports conservation easements n |ts revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, if applicable. the text of the footnote to the orgamization's financral statements that describes
tha orgamizal.on's accountng for conservation sasements

Orgamzatgons Malnt_alnmg Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116, not 1o raport in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
ari, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research i furtharance of public service,
provide, 0 Part XiV, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items

If the argamzation elected, as permutied under SFAS 116, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of arn,
historical treasures, or other simidar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items.

() Revenues mncluded 1 Form 980, Part Vil\, kine 1
(i) Assets included in Form 990, Part X .
2 It the organization recetved or held warks of art, mstoncal treasures, or other sumuar assets for financial gain, provde the
fotlowing amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 relating to these items
a Revenues included in Form 990, Part Vi, ling 1
b Assets included in Form 990, Part X

.

For Pnvacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructiona for Ferm 990. Cat No 522830 Schedule D (Form 900} 2008




, Scresdle D iForm 99G. 2008 Page 2
Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets ({continued)
3 Using the organization’s accesston and other records. check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection
tems {(check all that apply}
a [Z] Publc exhibition d D Loan or exchange programs
b [Zl Scholarly research e
c Preservation for future generanons
4 Provide a descnption of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in
Part X(IV.

During the year, did the orfgamzatuon solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar
assats to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? D Yos LZ] No

Trust, Escrow and Custodial Artangements, Complete if organization answered “Yes" to Form 990,
Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990. Part X, Iine 21.
is the organization an agent, trustes, custodian or other intermediary for contnbutions or other assets not
included on Form 990, Part X? ... .. . .
if “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIV and complete the fo|lowmg tabte

D Yes . No

Amount

Begnning balance . . . . . . . . . . . . S ic
Additions during the year . .. e e e .o R I ] - 1
Oistnbutions dunng the year . . . . - . .. B s T
gnding balance L}

Did the organization mclude an amounl on Form 990 Part X hne 217 {1 ves [ no
if “Yas " explaw the arrangement 1n Part XIV

Endowment Funds. Complete if organization answered “Yes"” to Form 990, Part IV, line 10.

{a} Current year (b} Priar yeacr (¢} Two years back | (d) Threo years back { (e} Four years back
Beginning of year balance 192,736,939
Contributions . . . . 2,247,480
Investment earnings or Iosses . 47,545,581
Grants or scholarships , . . . 524,981

Other expenditures for facilities
and programs -7,684,302

Admimistrative expenses P ¢
g End of year balance . 139,229,555

Provide the estimated percemage of the year end balance held as:

Permanent endowment » .

Term endowment »

Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the orgamization that are held and administered for the
organization by:

(i} unrelated organizatons . , . . e

N
. » - . . . . . . . . . . . . /
(i) refated organizations L. .o i | v
b it “Yes" to 3a(n), are the rglated orgamzahons hsted as requ»red on Schedule R" .

4 Describe in Part XIV the miendsd uses of the oigaivzaton's endowrment funds

UEBEMIGE N art Al

cas Y ST,

XTI investments—Land, Buildings, and Equipment. See Form 990, Parl X, ine 10.

Oescription of investment

{a) Cost or other basrs
{investment)

{b) Cost or other
basm (other)

{c) Depreciation

{d) Book value

Land
Buidings ,

Leasehoid umprovements

Equipment
Other

0

0

0

14,798,102

8,475,081

6,323,021

0

0

0

Q
]
0

3,222,040

2,663,813

558,227

0

()

[+]

Total. Add lines 1£|-1e (Column (d) should equal Farm 980, Part X, column (B}, line 10(c).) .

. »

6,881,248

Schedule D (Form 990] 2008




Scneoule D (Form 995, 2008

Page 3

Investments —Other Securities. See Form 990, Part X, line 12

eqony b} Book val ) Method ot valyation
o D?‘liccrl‘f(:zng ﬁ;::m:.:;‘, o Ve Cosl(gr erea-ohy:a: l\:aﬂ:et value

financial denvatives and other financial products o
Closely-heid equity interests . . .. |e
Other

21,842 489 Market

9,591,071 Partners equity
30,703 Market

Total, (Column (b) shoutd equal Form 990, Pert X, col. 8)kne 12} P 31,464,263

Investments~—Program Related. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Descripton of investrment type {b) Boak vaiue

{¢) Method of valualion
Caost or end-of-year market value

na

Total. Column (b) should equdl Form 990, Part X, col. (8] kne 13)

Other Assets. See Form 990, Part X, line 15,

() Descnption {b) Book value
Interest and Dividend Receivable 709,795
Total, (Cofumn (b) shouid equal Form 890, Part X, col. (B) fine 15.) . > 709,795

Other Liabilities. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

(8} Description of llabihty {b) Amount
Federal income taxas 0
Annuity Payable 57,825
Total. (Cofumn {b) shou'd equal Form 950, Part X, col (B line 25) B 57,825

in Part XIV, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reponts the organization’s habihty for

uncertain tax posrtions under £IN 48.

Schadule D (Form 990) 2008
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. Scr equte D (Form 995G, 2006

Page q

m Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets from Form 990 to Financial Statements

1 Total revenue (Form 990. Part Vilt, column {A), line 12) 1 -18.801,346
2 Total expenses (Form 990, Part IX. column (A), ine 25) . . 2 11,853.525
3  Excess or (defict) for the year Subtract ine 2 from line 1 3 -30.654,871
4 Net unrealized gains (Iosses) on investments . . 4 22,690,225
5 Donated services and use of facihties . 5 0
6 Investment expenses 6 9
7 Prior penod adjustments L 0
8 OCther (Describe in Part XIV} 8 g
9 Total adjustiments (net). Add imes 4-8 . ) -22,680,225
10 Excess or {(deficit) for the year per financial statements Combme lmes 3 and 9 10 -53,345,096
Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financia! Statements With Revenue er Return
1 Total revenue, gamns, and other support per audited financial statements . 1 -41,946,560
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VI, line 12-
a Net unreaiized gans on investments . . . .. , {22 -22,690,225
b Donated services and use of facilities . . . A . . L2 0
© Recoveries of prioryeargrants . . . . . . . . . . . . . |2 0
d Other (DescribemPant Xivy . ., ., . . . . . . . . .. Lad L
e Add nes 2athroughad . . . 20 -22,690,225
3 Subtract kne 2e from line 1 3 -19,256,335
Amounts included on Form 990, Part vm lme 12 but not on lme1
a Investment expenses not included on Form 890, Part VIIl, ine 7b . |43 454,989
b Other (Descnbem Part XIV) . ., . . . . , . . . . . ab 0
¢ Add lines 4a and 4b . 4¢ 454,989
S Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c (T hns should equal Form 990 Pan \, hne 12) 5 -18,801.346

Recaonciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements Wnth Expenses Jaer Return

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 11,398,536
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, hne 25

a Donated services and use of facilites . . ., . . . . . . . . |L2a 0

b Pnor year adjustments . . . e e . . j2b L

¢ Losses reported on Form 990, Part X ne2s . . . . . N D

d Other(Descrbe mPart XiV) . . . . . . . . . . .. L2d 8

e Add lines 2a through 2d 2e 0
3 Subtract line 2e from tine 1 3 11,398,536
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part rx lme 25 but not on lme1

a Invesiment expenses not nCluded on Form 990, Part VIN, ine 76 . | 42 454,389

b Other {Describe In Part XIv) . . .. ... L 8

¢ AJd linas 4a and 4b X 4c 454.989
5 Total expenses Add lines 3 and 4c_@hus should equa) Form 990 Part I, line 18) 5 11,853,525

Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide tha descnptions required for Pary ), hnes 3, 5, ang 9; Part i, bnes 12 and 4; Part 1Y, nes 1p

& 2

and 2b, Part V, line 4, Part X; Part X!, line 8, Part XN, lines 2d and 4pb:; and Part Xiil, ines 2d and 4b

institution, The objective 15 to preserve principal while maintaining the purchasing power of the funds invested.

Schedule O (Farm 9680} 2008
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Supplemental Information (continued)

Audited Statement attached
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I OMSB No 1545-0047

_ SCHEDULEE Schools
{Form 990 or 890-£2) » Tobe Jotod by that
answes “Yes™ ta Farm 990, Part Iy, tine 13, ov Form 990-EZ, Part Vi, line 48.

Deparimari of e Teeas v Open 1o Public

intemal Revenus Ser e » Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-E2. Inspection
Name ¢f tha organuzation Emp! ¥ dentificati b
Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens 13 5658824
YES| NO
1 Does the organization have a racially nondiscruminatory pohcy toward students by statement in its charter,
bylaws, other govermng instrument, or in a resolution of its governing body? . Coe e 1 v
2 Does the organization include a statement of its racially nondiscniminatory policy toward students in ail its
brochures, catalogues. and other written communications with the pubhc deaiing with student adrmissions,
programs, and scholarships? . . . . . . . . L . . . ... . e e e 2|V
3 Has the organization publicized its racially nondiscriminatory policy through newspaper or broadcast media
dunng the period of solicitation for students, or during the registration period if 1t has no solicitation program,
in a way that makas the policy known to all pans ot the general communny 1t serves? \f “Yes,” please
descnbe. If "No," please axplan . .. 3l v
ool web site and |n
4 Does the orgamzation maintain the following?
a Records indicating the ractal composition of the student body. taculty, and agministrative staff? .o dal v
b Records documenting that scholarsh;ps and other financial assistance are awarded on a racnally
nondiscnminatory basis? . . . a | v
¢ Copies ot all catalogues, brochures, announcements, and other wntten communicatons to the pubhc dealmg
with student admissions, programs, and scholarships? . . . .o .. dc | v
d Copies of all matenal used by the organization or on s behalf to sollcn contnbunons? e e ad | ¥
\f you answered "No" 1o any of the above, please explain. (i you need more space, attach a separale
statement.)
5 Does the organization dxscnmmate by race in any way with respect 10.
a Students’ nghts or privileges? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e e Sa 4
b Admissions policies? . . . . e . . e e e e e 5b v
¢ Employment of faculty or administrative staff? . . . . . ; . . .. 3¢ v
d Scholarships or other financial assistance? . . . . . |, . e e 5d v
e FEducational policies? . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. Se Y
f Useof facilities? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . oLt 4
9 AWIBUC POGIrAMS? .« .« v . e e e e e 59 v
h Other extracumicular activities? . . . . Sh 4
If you answered “Yes” to any of the above, please explam (If you need more space, aﬂach a separate
statement )
6a Does the organization recerve any financial aid or assistance from a governmental agency? . . . . | 6a 4
b Has the organization’s right to such aid ever been revoked or suspended? o o 6b /
If you answered “Yes" to either hne 6a or ine 6b, please explain using an attached statement
7 Does the organization certify that it has comphied with the applicable requirements of sections 4.01 through
4.05 of Rev. Proc 75-50, 1975-2 C.B, 587, covenng ractal nondiscrmination? If “No,” attach an explanation. | 7 | v

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, soe the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 500850 Sehadule £ (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2008




. Schedule F
{Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Interaal Reverwse Ser,cs

Statement of Activities Outside the United States

» Attach to Form 990. Complete if the crganization answered “Yes” to
Form 990, Part 1V, ine 14b, ine 15, or lne 16

| oreno 1sszoeer

2308

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization

Trustees of the American Schoo! of Classical Studies at Athens

Empioyer identrfication number
13 |

5658824

General Information on Activities Outside the United States. Complete if the orgamzation answered
“Yes"” to Form 990, Part IV, in@ 14b.

For grantmakers. Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or
assigtance, the grantees' eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selecton cnlena used to award

the grants or assistance? .

@ Yes {3 No

For grantmakers. Describe n Part IV the organization's procedures for monitonng the use of grant funds outside the

United States

Activities per Region. (Use Schedule F-1 (Form 980) i additional space 1s needed )

(@) Regron d) Number of
affices in the

region

{€) Number ol
employees of

agents in
reqion

{d} Actvtties conducted n
region (by tyoe) e,
fundraising program services
grants to recipients located in
the region)

{e) it actvity hsted in (d) 13
a program service
describe specific type of
service(s) in region

n Total
expanditures In
région

Europe (Greece)

62

Program Services

Instruction

1,257.799

Program Services

Libraries

2,461,023

Program Services

Excavations

2,893,076

Program Services

Scholarships

132,168

Totals ... » 1

62

6,744,066

For Pnivacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 880.

Cat No 5008>wW

Schedule F (Form 980) 2008
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soc guule FForn 989G 2006 Page 4

Supplamental (nformation
Complete this part to provide the iformation requued in Part |, ine 2. and any other adaitional information.

Part | #2 - students (both US and non US) are granted scholarships to study in Greece. All students receiving grants are

Schedule F (Form 990) 2008




. SCHEDULE G Supplemental Information Regarding jCVB N 13450047

(Form 990 or 990-E2) Fundraising or Gaming Activities

Froatment QY the Tradsun ® Aftach to £ orm 930 o7 Form 990-EZ. Must be completed by orgsnizatons that answer “Yes™ to Form 990, Part ¥, knes 17,
s#-ra Revenue Senc-» 18, or 19, and by orgarzzations that enter more than $15,000 on Form 980-EZ, jine 6o

Open To Pubiic
Inspection

Na ne of the organzation Employ fi b
Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens 13 ! 5658824

Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered “Yes" to Form 990, Part {V, ine 17.
1

Indicate whether the arganization raised funds through any of the following activities. Check all that apply.
a Mait solicitations e Solicitation of non-government grants
b Emajl solicitations f Sokicitation of government grants
c Phone solicitations -] [Zl Special fundraising avents
d In-person soficitations
2a [Dud the organizalion have a wntten or oral agreement with any individuat (ncluding officers, direclors, trustees
or key emptoyees histed in Form 990, Part Vii) or emity in connection with professional fundrassing services? Yes [] No

b If “Yes.” list the ten highest pald individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the tundraiser s
to be compensated at least $5,000 by the organization. Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this table.

(i) Name of indwictua! () Actrnty (wl} Dvd tundramer have | {iv) Gross receipts v} Amoum paid 1o (Vi) Amount pawd o
or entity {fundrarser} custody or controt of trom activity {or retained by) {or retained by)
contnbutions? fundraiger listed in orgarnization
col (i
Yes No
Campbeil & Company Consulting Y na 67,6114 na

Total |,

v 0 67,611 0

3 List all states n which the organization 1s registered or ficensed to solicit funds or has been notified 1t 1s exempt from
registration or licensing

New York

Massachussetts

.............................. oo

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990, Cat No 50083H Schedule G (Form 890 or 990-EZ) 2008




Scres.le G Form 99U or 990-E2, ?008

X0 Fundraising Events.

more than $15,000 on Form 990-

Page 2

Complete (f the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported

EZ Ine 6a. List events with gross receipts greater than $5,000.

Gross receipts .
Less: Chartable
contributions

Gross revenue (kine 1
minus line 2) . .

(a) Eve~: 11
Dinner Benefit

(b) Ever? 22
na

{c) Other Everts
na

evni' ype)

ip.ent tvpey

nora number)

{d) Totai Events
Ifuto col {a) througn
cot (e}

62,585

285

62,300

62,300

Direct Expenses

Cash prizes
Non-cash pnzes ,

Rent/tacility costs

Qther dicact expenses .

25,000

25,000

10,094

10,094

Direct axpense summary. Add lines 4 through 7 in column (d)
Net income summary Combine fines 3 and 8 in column (d)

»
»>

35,094)

27,208

Gaming. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990 Part IV ne 19,

than $15.000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

or reported more

Revenue

Gross revenue

{a) Bingo

(b) Pull tabs/Instant
bingo/progressive bingo

{c} Other gaming

(d) Totat gaming (Agd
col (a) through col {¢))

2
:
&
w
g
£

Cash pnzes
Non-cash prizes .

Rent/facitity costs

Other direct expenses .

Volunteer labor

O vYes

Direct expense summary Add hines 2 through 5 n column (d) .

Net gaming income summary, Combine lines 1 and 7 in column (d) .

Enter the state(s) in which the organization operates gaming activities:
Is the organization hcensed 10 operate gaming activittes in each of these states?

It “No,” Explain:

Were any of the organization’s gaming licenses revoked, suspended or terminated during the tax year?

if “Yes," Explain:

Does the organization operate gaming activities with nonmembers?

Is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust or a member of a pannershnp or olher enmy

formed 10 administer chantable gammg?

11

12

Schedule G {Form 980 or 990-EZ) 2008




Scregute G For ¢ 950 of 390-EZ, 2008

Page 3

13
a
b

14

15a

16

17

Indicate the percentage of gaming activity operated mn 138 o
The organization's faciity d

Yos

No

An outside facility 13b %
Provide the name and address of the person who prepares the orgamzatson s gammg/speclal events books
and records:

Does the organizanon have a contract with a third party from whom the orgamzatlon receives gaming
revenue”?

i “Yes.” enter the amounl of gambng revenue recelved by the orgamzatlon > E and the
amount of gaming revenue retained by the third party » $

It “Yes,” enter name ang address:

Description of services provided »

D Director/officer D Employee D Independent contractor

Mandatory distributions

Is the organmization required under state law to make charntable distributions from the gaming proceeds to
retain the state gaming licensa?

Enter the amount of distributions required under state law dlstnbuted to other exempt orgamzanons or spent
In the organrzation's own exempt activities during the tax year » $

15a

17a

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2008




|__OMB No 1555-0047

SCHEDULE J Compensation information
{Form 990)

For certamn Officers. Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees

Danartmert of the Treasuny » Attach to Form 990, To be completed by organizations

2008

Open to Public

aemnal Rovenue Serace that answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 23. Inspection
Nama of the organization 1 Employer 1denufi f b
Trustees of the American Schoo) of Classical Studies at Athens ] 13 ¢ 5658824
Questions Regarding Compensation
Yes | No
1a Check the appropnate box(es) f the organization provided any of the following to or for a person histed »n Form
990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complate Part il to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
{J First-class or charter travel [Z Housing allowance or residence for personal use
3 Travel for companions Q Payments for business use of personal residence
[ Tax indemnification and gross-up payments [J Health or social club dues or initiation fees
[J Discretionary spending account [J Personal services {e.g., maid, chauffeur, chef)
b if ine 1a1s checked, did the organization follow a wntten policy regarding payment or reimbursement or
provision of all of the expenses described abave? If “No,” complete Part lil to explain . ib| v/
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all
officers, directors, trustees, and the CEQ/Executive Director, regarding the items checked in line 1a? 2 |/
3 Indicate which, If any, of the following the organization uses to establish the compensation of the
organization's CEO/Executive Director Check all that apply.
] Compensation committee O wrtten employment contract
] Independent compensation consultant i/ Compensation survey or study
B0 Form 990 of other organizations A Approval by the board or compensation commmee»
4 Durning the year, did any person listed in Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a:
a Recewve a severance payment or change of contro! payment? . 43 v
b Participate in, or receive payment from, a supplemental nanqualified retn'ement plan'> 4b v
¢ Participate n, or receive payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement?. . 4c v
It “Yes" to any of ines 4a—c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item n Pan HI
Only 501{¢){3) and 501{c}{4) organizations must complete lines 5-8.
S For persons hsted in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, ne 1a, did the orgamization pay or accrue any
compensaton contingent on the revenues of:
a The orgamization? . Sa v
b Any related organization? Sb v
It “Yes” to line 5a or 5b, describe in Pan Ill
6 For persons Iisted in Form 980, Part Vi), Section A, Iine 1a, did the organizahion pay or accrue any
compaensation contingent on the net earnings of:
a The organizawon?. . 8a v
b Any related organization? | 6b v
If “Yes" to ine 6a or 6b, descnbe n Pan m
7 For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any non-fixed
payments not descnbed in lines 5 and 67 If “Yes,” descnba in Part 11! . . 7 v
8 Were any amounts reported i Form 990, Part Vii, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was
subject to the initial contract excepuon described n Regs section 53.4958- 4(a)(3)'? 1f “Yes,” descrnbe
in Part ifl . . 8 oA

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 500537 Schedule J (Form 990) 2008
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. i OMB No 1545-0047
+ SCHEDULE M NonCash Contributions
(Form 990}
» To be by arg that »d “Yos®
Department of trg Treasury on Form 990, Part [V, bnes 29 or 30, Open To Public
interal Revenue Ser ce » Attach 1o Form 990. Inspection
Name of e organzation Employer identfication number
Trustees of the American Schoo) of Classical Studies at Athens 13 5658824
Types of Property
(a) (] (o {d)
Check if | Number of contnbutions Revenues reported on Methog af determining
applicable Form 980, Part VI, ine 1g revenues
1 Art—Works of art
2 An—thstoncal treasures
3 Art—Fractional interests
4 Books and publications
§ Clothmg and household
goods . ., . ., , . .
6 Cars and other vehicles
T Boats and planes
8 Inteliectual property | .
9 Secunties—Publicly traded v 2 36,185 Market Value day of gift
10 Securties~Closely held stock ,
11 Securmies—Partnership, LLC,
or trust interests |, .
12 Securmes—-Mlsceuaneous .
13 Qualfied conservation
contribution (historic
structures) .
14 Qualified conservation
contribution {(other)
15 Real estate—Residential
18 Real estate—Commercial .
17  Real estate—~Other
18 Collectibles
19 Food inventory
20 Drugs and medical supphes
21  Taxidermy
22 Histoncal amfacts
23 Scientfic specimens
24 Archeological anifacts .
23 Cther Pl i .0 L2
26 Other» (... )
27 Other » {.. )
2B Olher # (cccvemvemeincerannannn,
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KPMG LLP

Suite 402

301 Carnegie Center
Prncaton, NJ 08540-6227

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Trustees
American School of Clasdical Studies
at Athens:

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Amencan School of Classical
Studies at Athens (the School) as of June 30, 2009, and the related statements of actwvities and cash flows
for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the School’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The prior year
summarized comparative information has been derived from the School’s 2008 financial statements and, in
our report dated November 24, 2008, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our apinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of American School of Classical Studies at Athens as of June 30, 2039, and the changes
in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting princtples.

As discussed in note 8 to the financial statements, American School of Classical Studies at Athens adopted
the provisions Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff Position No. FAS 117-1, Endowments of
Not-for-Profit Organizations: Net Asset Classification of Funds Subject to an Enacted Version of the
Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act, and Enhanced Disclosures for All Endowment
Funds, as of July 1, 2008.

KPMe P

November 20, 2009




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2009
(with comparative financial information as of June 30, 2008)

Assets 2009 2008
Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,362,700 633,696
Contributions and other receiv$bles, net 1,574,257 1,026,668
Accrued investment income 709,795 780,757
Prepaid expenses 154,788 188,577
Investments (notes 2 and 3) 135,304,436 189,235,649
Plant assets, net of accumulated depreciation (note 5) 6,881,248 7,471,654
Total assets $ 145,987,224 199,337,001
Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 692,415 736,923
Deferred revenue 154,816 114,989
Annuities payable 57,825 57,825
Total liabilities 905,056 909,737

Net assets:

Unrestricted:

Operating 60,907,928 166,633,454
Designated for future capital projects 170,317 60,318
Investinent 1n plant assets 6,881,248 7,471,654
Total unrestricted 67,959,493 174,165,426
Temporarily restricted (note 8) 53,829,064 3,153,716
Permanently restricted (note 8) 23,293,611 21,108,122
Total net assets 145,082,168 198,427,264
Total liabilities and net assets $ 145987,224 199,337,001

See accompanying notes 10 financial statements.




AMERICAN SCHOOL. OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Suatement of Acuvilies

Year cnded June 30, 2009
{with summanzed financal information for the year ended June 30, 2008)

2009
Temporsnily Permanently 2008
Unrestricted restricted resiricted Total Total

Operating revenues, gains, losses and other support:
Student twition and fees s 443,701 — -— 443,701 418,336
Federal awards 208,130 — 208,130 86,000

Contnbutions and grants ) 975,448 1,443,344 2,142,477 4,561,269 6,157.307
Invesunent retum authonzed for use

n operations {note 4) 3,587,188 3,172,815 — 6,760,000 6,183,001
Interest and dividends on working capital — — 4,371 78,299
Other revenucs (losses) X 13,889 43,012 377.550 252,678

Total operating revenues, gains
and losses 5,543,484 4,630,048 2,185,489 12,359,021 13,175,618
Net assets relcased from restrictions (note 7) 4,377,368 (4,372,368)

Touwl operating revenues, gains,
losscs and other suppornt 9920852 252 680 2.185.489 12,359,021 13,175,618

Operating expenses (note 6).
Program services.

Instruction 1,701,901 1,701,901 1,816,780
Publications 914,706 914,706 883,608
Libranes 2,999,308 . 2,999,398 3,496,736
Excavations and research 3,519,650 3,519,650 3,761,019
General administration 2,262 881 2,262,881 2,263,186
Total operating expenses 11,398,536 11,398,536 12,221,329
(Decrease) increase in net
asgets from operating activities (1,477,684) 252,680 2.185.489 960,485 954,289
Other revenues. gains (losses) and other support
| return less authonzed

) for use n aperations (note 4) (28.964.802) (25,340,779) — (54.305.581) 7242.113
Net asset reclassification (note 8) (75,763.447) 75,763,447 —

(Decrease) tncredse in net assets (106.205,933) 50,675,348 2,185,489 (53.345,096) 8,196,402
Nei assets as of beginning of year 174,165,426 3,153,716 21,108,122 198,427,264 190,230,862
Net assets as of end of year $ 67,959,493 53,829.004 23,293,611 145,082,168 198,427,264

See accompanying notes to financial statements




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2009
(with comparative financial information for the year ended June 30, 2008)

2009 2008
Cash flows from operating activities:
(Decrease) increase in net assets $  (53,345,096) 8,196,402
Adjustments to reconcile (degrease) increase in net assets
to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation expense 898,764 895,043
Net realized and unrealized losses (gains) 50,048,885 (10,576,012)
Contributions restricted for long-term investment
and acquisitions of plant assets (2,686,893) (3,926,240)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Contributions and other receivables (47,990) (19,299)
Accrued investment income 70,962 (104,483)
Prepaid expenses 33,789 (50,080)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (44,508) 120,700
Deferred revenue 39,827 (37,480)
Net cash used in operating activities (5,032,260) __(5,501,449)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 529,191,908 454,262,869
Purchases of investments (525,309,580) (452,855,087)
Acquisitions of plant assets (308,358) (551,648)
Net cash provided by investing activities 3,573,970 856,134
Cash flows from financing activities:
Contributions restricted for long-term investunent and
acquisitions of plant assets 2,686,893 3,926,240
Increase in contributions receivable related to plant assets
and endowment (499,599) (529,122)
Net cash provided by financing activities 2,187,294 3,397,118
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 729,004 (1,248,197)
Cash and cash equivalents as of beginning of year 633,696 1.881.893
Cash and cash equivalents as of end of year 3 1,362,700 633,696

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2009
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2008)

-

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization )

American School of Classical Studies at Athens (the School), founded in 1881, offers both graduate
students and scholars the opportunity to study Greek civilization first hand in Greece. The School’s
mission is to teach the archaeology, art, history, language, and literature of Greece from early times to the
present, to survey and excavate archaeological sites in Greece, and to publish the results of its excavation
and research,

The School is an organization described under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and
therefore is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(a) of the Code.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements, which are presented on the accrual basis of accounting, have
been prepared to focus on the School as a whole and to present balances and transactions according
to the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes
therein are classified as follows:

. Permanently restricted net assets — net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they
be maintained permanently by the School. Generally, the donors of these assets permit the
School to use all or part of the income eamed on related investments for general or specific
purposes.

Temporarily restricted net assets ~ net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that will be
met by actions of the School and/or by the passage of time.

. Unrestricted net assets — net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Revenues are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets unless use of the related asset is limited
by donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets. Realized
and unrealized gains and losses on investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases
or decreases in unrestricted net assets unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by
law. Investment return with donor-imposed restrictions that are met in the same year as received is
reported as revenues of the unrestricted net asset class. Expiration of temporary restrictions on net
assets is reported as net assets released from restrictions.

Contributions

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the period
received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is,
when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Contributions of assets other than
cash are recorded at their estimated fair value at date of donation. Contributions receivable are

(Continued)




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2009
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2008)

/

expected to be received during the indicated time periods and have been discounted for the time
value of money as of June 30: N
} 2009 2008

One year or less 646,271 233,451
Between one and five years 830,937 768,903

1,477,208 1,002,354

Less:
Present valuc discount (3.375% - 5.063%) (46,638) (71,383)

1,430,570 930,971

Release of Restrictions on Net Assets Used for Acquisition of Plant Assets

Contributions of plant assets without donor stipulations concerning the use of such long-lived assets
are reported as revenues of the unrestricted net asset class. Contributions of cash or other assets to be
used to acquire plant assets without such donor stipulations are reported as revenues of the
temporarily restricted net asset class; the restrictions are considered to be released at the time such
acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing program services and support services of the School have been summarized
on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain operating costs have been
allocated among the functional categories.

The School’s primary program services are instruction, publications, libraries and excavations and
research. Expenses reported as general administration are incurred in support of these program
services. Fundraising costs, included in generai adminisiration e€xpenses, were approximately.
$297,000 and $323,000 in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Waorks of Art, Historical Treasures and Similar Assets

Works of art and historical treasures held as part of a collection - for education and/or research - are
not recognized or capitalized in the accompanying financial statements.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are so near their maturity (original maturities of three months or less) that they
present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates, except for thase
managed as a component of the School’s investment portfolio.

(Continued)




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2009
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2008)

-

Annuities Payable

Contributions of charitable gift annuities are recorded at the date the assets are received afier
recording liabilities for the actuarial present value of the estimated payments to be made to the donor
and/or other beneficiaries. The labilities are periodically adjusted for changes in the estimates of
future benefits. The adjustments are recorded as actuarial gain on annuity obligations and are
included in contributions in the accompanying statement of activities.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The School’s accounting records in Greece are maintained in Euro’s. Transactions in Euro’s are
converted into U.S. dollars at average monthly exchange rates during the year. The average exchange
rate for fiscal 2009 and 2008 was 1.375 and 1.484, U.S. dollar to one Euro, respectively. Cash held
in Euro’s has been translated into U.S. dollars at the foreign exchange rate in effect as of June 30,
2009 and 2008, whickt was 1.406 and 1.575, U.S. dollar to one Euro, respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a
liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, establishes a fair value hierarchy,
which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that
may be used to measure fair value:

. Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 1 assets and
liabilities include debt and equity securities that are traded in an active exchange market, as
well as U.S. Treasury securities.

. Level 2: Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities; quotes prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or
liabilities. Level 2 assets and liabilities include debt securities with quoted market prices that
are traded less frequently than exchange-traded instruments. This category generally includes
certain U.S. Government and agency mortgage-backed debt securities, corporate-debt
securities and certain alternative investments.

. Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the asset or liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include
financial instruments whose value is determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow
methodologies, ér similar techniques, as well as instruments for which the determination of
fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation. This category generally
includes certain private debt and equity instruments and alternative investments.

7 {Continued)




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2009
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2008)

-

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on available market information and
judgments about the financial asset, including estimates of timing, amount of expected future cash
flows and the credit standing of the issuer. In some cases, the fair value estimates cannot be
substantiated by comparison to independent markets. In addition, the disclosed fair value may not be
realized in the immediate sctilement of the financial asset. In addition, the disclosed fair values do
not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one time an entire
holding of a particular financial asset. Potential taxes and other expenses that would be incurred in an
actual sale or settlement are not reflected in amounts disclosed.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The School follows the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instrumenis and Hedging Activitics, as amended by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging
Activities. These Statements require that all derivative financial instruments be recognized in the
financial statements and measured at fair value regardless of the purpose or intent for holding them.

The fair value of the derivatives held is based upon values provided by third-party financial
institutions. -

Concentration of Credit Risk

The School maintains a significant and diverse investment portfolio which includes money market
funds, U.S. Government obligations, debt and equity securities and alternative investments.
Alternative investments include interests in limited partmerships. These instruments may contain
elements of both credit and market risk. Such risks include, but are not limited to, limited liquidity,
absence of regulatory oversight, dependence on key individuals and nondisclosure of portfolio
composition. The School reviews the performance and risks associated with these investments on at
least a monthly basis. In addition, the School utilizes the services of an investment consultant who
continually monitors the individual investment fund performance, any changes in management at the

investment fund or any other significant matters affecting the fund and advises the School of any
such changes.

As the School is dependent on investment return to fund a significant portion of the operations of the
School, a significant decrease in investment return may have a material impact on the financial
position, changes in net assets, and cash flows of the School.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

Effective July I, 2008, the School adopted SFAS No. 157. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, expands disclosures about fair value
measurements, and establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair value measurements based on the
observable inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability at the measurement date. This
pronouncement does not require any new fair value measurements.

8 {Continued)




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2009
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2008)

»”
-’

Effective June 30, 2009, the School adopted Accounting Standards Update No. 2009-12, Invesiments
in Certain Entities Yhat Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Its Equivalent), to its nonreadily
marketable investments. This guidance amends Statement 157 and allows for the estimation of the
fair value of investments in investment companies for which the investment does not have a readily
determinable fair walue using net asset value per share or its equivalent.

Effective June 30, 2009, the School adopted SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events (SFAS No. 165).
SFAS No. 165 establishes principles and requirements for subsequent events and applies to
accounting for and disclosure of subsequent events not addressed in other applicable generally
accepted accounting principles. The Schoo!l evaluated events subsequent to June 30, 2009 and
through November 20, 2009, the date on which the financial statements were issued. The adoption of
SFAS No. 165 had no impact on the School’s financial statements,

Effective July 1, 2008, the School adopted FASB Staff Position No. FAS 117-1, Endowments of Not-
Jor-Profit Organizations: Net Asset Classification of Funds Subject to an Enacted Version of the
Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act, and Enhanced Disclosures for All
Endowment Funds (FSP 117-1). FSP 117-1 provides guidance on the net asset classification of
donor-restricséd endowment funds for a not-for-profit organization that is subject to an enacted
version of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act of 2006 (UPMIFA).
FSP 117-1 also improves disclosures about an organization’s donor-restricted and board-designated
endowment funds. The State of New Jersey enacted the provisions of UPMIFA during fiscal year
2009 (see note 8).

Prior Year Summarized Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but
not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information
should be read in conjunction with the School’s financial statements for the year ended June 30,

2008, from which the summarized information was derived. a

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

(Continued)
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AMERICAN SCHQOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES

AT ATHENS

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2009

(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2008)

-~

Investments

Investments are stated nt/ fair value. The fair value of all marketable securities is based on quotations
obtained from national sécurities exchanges. The estimated fair value of alternative investments is based on
valuations provided by t"le external investment managers. Because altemative investments are not readily
marketable, their estimated values are subject to uncertainty and therefore may differ from the value that
would have been used had a ready market for such investments existed. Such difference could be material.

Investments consisted of the following as of June 30, 2009 and 2008:

Money market funds

Euro currency holdings

U.S. Government obligations

U.S. Agency obligations *

Foreign bonds and equities

U.S. Corporate equity

U.S. Corporate b:gls and debentures
Alternative investrfients

Foreign currency forward contracts

2009 2008

$ 16,660,980 11,268,587

5,858,809 —
7,359,629 6,962,439
7,107,606 7,299,927
14,004,296 14,132,258
37,011,642 97,139,540
15,838,211 9,612,159
31,433,560 41,641,376
30,703 1,179,363
$ 135,305,436 189,235,649

The School’s portfolio also includes certain types of financial instruments, such as foreign currency
forward contracts, which involve varying degrees of off-balance-sheet risk (see note 3).

The following table presents the School’s fair value hierarchy for those assets and liabilities measured at
fair value on a recurming basis as of June 30, 2009:

Financia) assets:
Investments’
Money market funds
Euro currency holdings
U S. Government obligations
U S. Agency obliggtions
Foreign bonds and equities
U S Corporate equities
U S Corporate bond and
debentures
Aliemative investments
Foreign currency forward
contracts

Total

Fair
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
$  10,660.980 16,660,980 —_
5,858,809 5.858,809 —
7,359,629 7,359,629 -_ —
7,107,606 7,107,606 —_
14,004,296 14,004,296 —_
37,011,642 37,011,642 — —_
15,838.211 15,838,211 — —_
31,433,560 —_ 21,842,489 9,591,071
30,703 — — 30.703
$ 135,305.436 103,841,173 21,842,489 9,621,774

10
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AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2009
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2008)
-y

-

The following table presents a reconciliation for all Level 3 assets measured at fair value for the period
July 1, 2008 10 June 30, 2009;

N Level 3 assets
Financial asse?s:

Beginning balance July 1, 2008 3 17,741,665
Total unrealized losses (15,533,734)
Redemptions (187,724,711)
Purchases 195,138,554

Ending balance June 30, 2009 $ 9,621,774

The School invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to various risks such
as interest rate, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment
securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities will occur in
the near term and sugh changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the balance sheet.

Derivative Financial Instruments

During 2009 and 2008, the School entered into foreign currency forward contracts with various maturity
dates. The foreign currency forward contracts are a partial hedge to limit the School’s exposure to changes
in exchange rates. Under the terms of the contract, the School has committed to purchase Euro currency at
a fixed exchange rate for 20,000,000 U_S. dollars on the maturity date of the contract, Angust 17, 2009.

The fair value of the forward contracts was $30,703 and $1,179,363 as of June 30, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.'s 133 and 138, the
School reports these derivative financial instruments at fair value in the accompanying statement of
financial position as of june 30, 2009 and 2008, with any gains and losses recognized in the statement of
activities.

Investment Return

Investment return consists of interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses on
investments. Each yearthe School includes a portion of its investment retum in its operating budget, with
the amount of such plagned support determined using its spending policy. The policy of the School is to
distribute for current spending a percentage of the five year moving average of the fair value of pooled
investments as of December 31, currently 4.5%, annually.
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The components of investment return for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 were as follows:

2009 2008

Interest and dividends $ 2,958,293 3,654,352
Net realized and unreslized (losses) gains (50,048,885) 10,576,012
Investment advisory fees (454,989) (805,250)

Total investment return (47,545,581) 13,425,114
Investment return authorized for usc in operations (6,760,000) (6,183,001)

Investment retumn less amounts authorized

for use in operations $  (54,305,581) 7,242,113

(5) Plant Assets

Plant assets are stated at cost or fair value at date of donation and are comprised of the following as of
June 30, 2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Net Net
Carrylng  Accumulated carrying Carrying  Accumulated carrying
vajue depreciation value yalue depreciation value
Building improvements:
Blegen Library s 2484879 2445917 38.962 2,484 879 2,438,820 46,059
Davis and Blegen Library 200,000 200,000 — 200,000 200,000 —
Loring Hall 200,800 200,800 - 200,800 200,800 -
Gennadius Library 9,009,704 1,872,781 5,136,923 9,009,705 3,361,800 5,647,905
Apartment at Athens 87,999 87.999 - 87.999 87,999 -
Other buildings 2,660,593 1,667,584 993,009 2.528,196 1,494,133 1,034,063
Equipment 3,222,040 2,663,813 558227 3,088,185 2,456,578 631,607
Construction i progress 154,127 — 154.127 112,020 — 112,020
£ 18020,142 {1,138 #94 6 881248 17.711.784 10,240,130 7,471,654

Depreciation of building improvements and equipment is provided by the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging from five to ten years.

The School expenses the purchases of books for its libraries. The School maintained approximately
213,100 and 219,800 volumes that were housed in the Gennadius and Blegen Libraries during 2009 and
2008, respectively.
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(6) Operating Expenses

Operating expenses by natural classification for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 were as follows:

2009 2008

Salaries $ 4,792,102 4,842,200
Payroll tax, pension, and benefits 1,492,619 1,623,034
Fellowships 526,423 569,063
Excavation/research costs 1,343,051 1,986,834
Legal 59,246 68,669
Other professional fees 108,182 109,783
Telephone/utilities 421,873 449,491
Postage 24,275 26,597
Occupancy 110,297 104,887
Minor equipment and supplies 239,624 367,688
Depreciation 898,764 895,043
Other 1,382,080 1,178,040

3 11,398,536 12,221,329

()  Net Assets Released from Restrictions

Donor testrictions were met by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes or by occurrence of
events specified by the donors for the year ended June 30, 2009 as follows:

Amount
Instruction/fellowships 3 973,862
Publications 632,652
Libraries 897,703
Excavations and research and acquisitions of piant assets 1,675,778
General administration and other 197,373

4,377,368

(Continued)
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Restrictions and Limitations on Net Asset Balances
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets consisted of gifis and other unexpended revenues and gains available for
the following as of June 30, 2009 and 2008:

2009 2008

Instruction/fellowships $ 17,231,301 34,084
Publications 9,663,058 141,084
Libraries 11,856,980 52,302
Excavations and research 12,445,819 488,299
Acquisitions of plant assets 2,430,046 2,106,789
General administration 201,860 328,799
Annuities — 2,359

$ 53,829,064 3,153,716

Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets consisted of endowment gifts with income to be used for the following as
of June 30, 2009 and 2008;

2009 2008
Instruction/fellowships s 5,108,495 4,481,943
Publications 982,313 982,313
Libraries 6,734,461 5,678,324
Excavations and research 4,454,431 4,451,631
General administration 6,013,911 5,513,911
$ 23,293,611 21,108,122

Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor requires the School to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. In
accordance with GAAP, deficiencies of this nature are to be reported in unrestricted net assets as of year
end. These deficiencies resulted from unfavorable market fluctuations that occurred shortly after the
investment of new permanently restricted contributions and continued appropriation for certain programs

that was deemed prudent by the board of trustees. There were no such deficiencies as of June 30, 2009 or
2008.
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Interpretation of Relevant Law

The board of trustees of the School has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the purchasing power of the original gift as of the
gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. The
School classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the
permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c)
accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor
gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The investment income eamed on the
accumulations to the permanently restricted endowment funds is classtfied as temporarily restricted net
assets until the donor-imposed restrictions have been met and appropriated by the Board for expenditure.

In accordance with FSP 117-1, the School recorded a reclassification from unrestricted net assets to
temporarily restricted net assets of $75,763,447 1n the accompanying statement of activities.

Spending Policy

The School has a policy of appropriating, each year, for distribution 4.5% of its endowment fund’s average
fair value, as of December 31, over the prior five years proceeding the fiscal year in which the distribution
1s planned. [n establishing this policy, the Schoo!l considered the long-term expected return on its
endowment. Accordingly, over the long term, the School expects the current spending policy to allow its
endowment to grow at an average of a least 2% annually. This is consistent with the School’s objective to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity as well as provide additional
rea) growth through new gifls and investment retums.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The School has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of income and growth, while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the
endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that the School must
hold in perpetuity. Under this policy, as approved by the School's board of trustees, the endowment assets

are invested in a manner that is intended to produce moderate to high rates of return while assuming a
moderate to low level of investment risk.

The following represents the net asset classes of the School's board-designated and donor-restricted
endowment funds at June 30, 2009:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total

Board-designated endowment funds § 65,513,276 — — 65,513,276
Donor-restncted endowment funds — 50,422,668 23,293,611 73,716,279

$ 65,513,276 50,422,668 23,293,611 139,229,555
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The following represents the net asset classes of the School’s donor-restricted endowment funds at
June 30, 2008:

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted restricted restricted Total
Board-designated endowment funds § 171,628,817 — — 171,628,817
Donor-restricted endowment funds — — 21,108,122 21,108,122
$ 171,628,817 — 21,108,122 192,736,939

The following table presents changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2009:

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted restricted restricted Total

Endowment net assets at

July 1, 2008 $ 171,628,817 — 21,108,122 192,736,939
Net asset reclassification (75,763,447) 75,763,447 — —
Net realized and unrealized losses (26,705,991) (23,342,894) — (50,048,885)
Interest and dividends, net of fees 1,328,375 1,174,929 — 2,503,304
Contnibutions 61,991 — 2,185,489 2,247,480
Appropnation of endowment

assets for expenditure (5,036,469) (3,172,814) — (8,209,283)

$ 65,513,276 50,422,668 23,293,611 139,229,555

The following table presents changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2008:

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted restricted restricted Total

Endowment net assets at

July 1, 2007 $ 164,752,340 — 19,805,299 184,557,639
Interest and dividends, net of fees 2,849,102 — — 2,849,102
Net realized and unrealized gains 10,576,012 — — 10,576,012
Contributions 97,890 —_— 1,302,823 1,400,713
Appropriation of endowment

assets for expenditure (6,646,527) — — _(6,646,527)

$ 171,628,817 — 21,108,122 192,736,939
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Retirement Plan

The School has a defined contribution retirement plan covering U.S. citizen professional employees which
is funded on a current basis, principally by paymenis to the Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association
and to The Vanguard Group. Pension expense amounted to approximately $204,000 and $213,000 for the
years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Commitments
Termination and Retirement Indemnities

In accordance with Greek law, compensation is payable to employees upon their dismissal, except for legal
cause. The amount of compensation is based on the number of years of service and amount of
remuneration at date of dismissal. Should the employees remain with the School until normal reticement
age, 40% of such compensation must be paid to them on retirement. The School follows the policy of
paying managerial and clerical employees 60% of such compensation and paying other employees 50% of
such compensation. ing the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, charges to operations for tetmination
and retirement indemgities were $34,877 and $120,708, respectively. No accrual for active employees has
been recorded in the gecompanying statement of financial position, The maximum liability for termination
and retirement indemgdities, if all employees are dismissed based on 100% of such compensation as of
June 30, 2009 and 2088, approximates $1,521,000 and $1,523,000, respectively.

/

‘a

Operating Lease

The School leases office space under an operating lease arrangement expiring April 30, 2012. Rental
expense for the years_’.gnded June 30, 2009 and 2008 was $94,730 and $91,968, respectively. Minimum
annual rental commi&a‘nts approximate the following:

-

’ — Amount

Year ending June 30:
2010 98,000
2011 100,000
2012 86,000




